**1. NAME**

COMMON: SONOMA PLAZA (National Historic Landmark)

AND/OR HISTORIC: Old Sonoma or Sonoma Pueblo

**2. LOCATION**

STREET AND NUMBER: 

CITY OR TOWN: Sonoma

STATE CODE COUNT: California 06 Sonoma 097

**3. CLASSIFICATION**

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>CATEGORY (Check One)</th>
<th>OWNERSHIP</th>
<th>STATUS</th>
<th>ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>X District</td>
<td>□ Public</td>
<td>X Occupied</td>
<td>Yes: Restricted</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>□ Site</td>
<td>□ Private</td>
<td>□ In Process</td>
<td>□ Unoccupied</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>□ Structure</td>
<td>X Both</td>
<td>□ Being Considered</td>
<td>□ Unrestricted</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>□ Object</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
<td>□ No</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

X Agricultural  Government  □ Park  □ Transportation  □ Comments
X Commercial    □ Industrial □ Private Residence □ Other (Specify)
X Educational   □ Military   □ Religious □                   
X Entertainment □ Museum    □ Scientific                   

**4. OWNER OF PROPERTY**

OWNER'S NAME: Department of Parks and Recreation

City of Sonoma, California Sonoma State Historic Park

STREET AND NUMBER: City of Sonoma, No. 1 The Plaza Sonoma S.H.P., P.O. Box 167

CITY OR TOWN: Sonoma

STATE: California

CODE: 3660

**5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION**

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Sonoma County Courthouse

STREET AND NUMBER: 

CITY OR TOWN: Santa Rosa

STATE: California

CODE: 3490

**6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS**

TITLE OF SURVEY: See enclosures

DATE OF SURVEY: X Federal  X State

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS: 

STREET AND NUMBER: 

CITY OR TOWN: 

STATE:
Original Appearance:

Sonoma Pueblo was the chief military base of the Mexican Government in Alta, California from 1835 to the end of the Mexican period. Established in June 1835, both to check possible Russian expansion from Fort Ross, California, and to control the Indians. It was founded by Lt. Mariano Guadalupe Vallejo, Military Commander and Director of the Northern Frontier.

Mission San Francisco Solano de Sonoma was founded on July 4, 1823 by Friar Jose Altimira. The mission is the last founded of 21 California Missions and the only one founded during the Mexican period.

By 1845, the pueblo had 45 houses and a population of some 300. On June 14, 1846, the Bear Flag was raised in Sonoma Plaza and the Bear Flag Party declared the freedom of California from Mexican rule. On July 9, 1846, the American Flag replaced the Bear Flag.

From 1849 to 1852, American troops were sporadically stationed at Sonoma with many junior officers to later gain fame, particularly, in the Civil War.

Present Appearance:

Sonoma Pueblo, founded in 1835, became the City of Sonoma in 1850. Today, 11 one and two-story Spanish-Mexican adobes are still standing around or near the town plaza.

Interdispersed among the adobe buildings are a large number of Victorian period structures, along with more modern structures.

The eight acre plaza is relatively unaltered and the plaza area of Sonoma conveys to visitors both historical integrity and atmosphere.

Part of the historic adobe structures are owned by the State of California, Department of Parks and Recreation and administered as Sonoma State Historic Park. The remaining structures are in private ownership.

The City of Sonoma receives many visitors each year due to the historic resources and atmosphere of the town. Many of the businesses located around or near the plaza cater to visitors and restaurants, art galleries, antique shops and gift shops abound.

The south and southwest sector of the City contains grocery stores, gas stations and similar businesses.
Mission San Francisco Solano de Sonoma was founded on July 4, 1824, and was the last of the 21 California missions and the only one founded during the Mexican period.

Sonoma Pueblo was the chief military base and the most northern pueblo under the control of the Mexican Government in Alta, California from 1835 to the end of the Mexican period, 1848. The pueblo was established in June 1835, both to check the Russian expansion from Fort Ross, California and to control the Indians.

In the Sonoma Plaza, on June 14, 1846, members of the Bear Flag Revolt raised the Bear Flag, now the California State Flag. William B. Ide was elected President of the republic; declared that the war for California's independence had begun and invited all patriotic citizens to join the movement to end Mexican Rule. On July 9, 1846, the Bear Flag was replaced by the American Flag. On August 7, 1848, word reached California of the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo, ending the conflict.

The eight acre Sonoma Plaza and twelve one and two story buildings of the Mexican Period remain today. In addition, a large number of 1848-1900 structures are located near the plaza.

Sonoma's primary significance relates to the History Theme; Major American Wars; subtheme, The Mexican War. Sonoma is the only site which represents the Bear Flag Revolt. The Sonoma Plaza area also contains a large number of structures of architectural importance, 1832 to 1860.

Sonoma Plaza is a National Historic Landmark and was dedicated on September 25, 1961. By letter of February 15, 1961, William G. Raymond, Mayor, City of Sonoma applied for Registered National Landmark status.
9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

5. Chester Lyle Guthrie, 1936 - "California Historical Landmark Series."

10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY</th>
<th>LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>CORNER</td>
<td>LATITUDE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>NW</td>
<td>38° 17' 52&quot;</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>NE</td>
<td>38° 17' 52&quot;</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>SE</td>
<td>38° 17' 22&quot;</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>SW</td>
<td>38° 17' 22&quot;</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:
LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE: Sonoma
CODE: 097

NAME AND TITLE: Robert A. Cox, Historic Architect
Thomas D. Mulhern, Jr., Landmark Program Specialist

ORGANIZATION: Western Regional Office, National Park Service

DATE: August 1, 1973

STREET AND NUMBER: 450 Golden Gate Avenue (Box 36063)
CITY OR TOWN: San Francisco
STATE: California
CODE: 06

12. STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service. The recommended level of significance of this nomination is:
National [ ] State [ ] Local [ ]

Name ____________________________
Title ____________________________
Date ____________________________

I hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register.

A.R. Martens
Director, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation

Date 1/24/74
ATTEST: __________________________
Keeper of The National Register
Date 1/24/74
7. DESCRIPTION: (Continued)

4) (Toscano) Hotel Annex, West Spain Street. Owned by State of California. Structure is being used as Sonoma Area Headquarters, Department of Parks and Recreation.

A Victorian Italianate, 2 story wood frame building, constructed 1900 to 1910. The structure provided hotel rooms on both floors. The structure is in excellent condition. Nearby is a small wooden two story structure. Photographs enclosed.

5) Casa Grande; General Vallejo's home (site of). Constructed approximately 1836 - 1840. Spain Street, between Sonoma Barracks and Swiss Hotel, 18 West Spain Street. Destroyed by fire in 1867. Property owned by the State of California and administered as part of Sonoma Historic State Park.

Drawings, 1846 - 1851, indicated a two story adobe building with a second floor balcony running the length of the building facing the plaza. On the west side of the building was a tower. Nothing remains of the structure or tower above ground. The structure was the center of the Sonoma Pueblo administration and social life in its period.

6) Casa Grande Servants Quarters, the long two-story adobe structure, with a covered balcony on its east facing side was erected in 1837 as the servants quarters to General Vallejo's home, Casa Grande. The structure is of Monterey Colonial Style. Property owned by the State of California, Department of Parks and Recreation, Sonoma Historic State Park. Photographs enclosed.

7) Swiss Hotel, 18 West Spain Street, privately owned.

Constructed by Captain Don Salvador Vallejo about 1843 - 1845, Monterey Colonial Townhouse style. The building was constructed as the Post Commandancia. The exterior of the adobe house is covered with clapboard to protect it from elements. The west wall is out of alignment; typical of adobe structures. The building was remodeled in 1850.

Used originally as a dwelling in 1881, the building became a hotel and restaurant. It is presently used as a restaurant and the structure is in excellent condition.


8) The Country Inn (Sebastiani Hotel), 110 West Spain Street, corner of First Street West, privately owned.

A Victorian structure, classic revival, originally called Weyl Hall, of wood construction. Originally a theater was located on the second floor of the structure. Purchased by Sebastiani who rebuilt the structure and probably added the yellow stucco finish with white trim. Presently, the structure is used as a hotel and bookstore. Date of construction is uncertain. The hotel keeper thinks that the structure was built about 1896. Photograph enclosed.
9) **Jones Adobe**: 143 West Spain Street and privately owned.

The building is a small one-story adobe house of the Monterey Colonial style which is little altered on the exterior and is in use as a residence. The building has been restored and is in outstanding condition.

Photograph enclosed.

**Buildings, West side of Plaza:**

10) **El Dorado Hotel**: 411-17 First Street West, corner of Spain Street, privately owned.

The building was constructed as a one-story adobe in the 1840's and in 1848-49, it housed a noted hostelry. In the 1860's, the second frame story was added.

The considerably altered building contributes mass to the west side of the plaza and is operated as a restaurant.

Photographs enclosed.

11) **Salvador Vallejo Adobe**: 417 First Street West. Privately owned. Built by Indian labor, 1843-1845, this structure was an income property of Captain Salvador Vallejo, younger brother of General Mariano G. Vallejo, from 1843 to 1849.

The large rectangular shaped building has adobe walls which are plastered and white washed. Built in the Monterey Colonial style, the adobe's original appearance has been altered by a frame addition added on the south end of the building in 1931. There is a large veranda across the plaza side which is supported by wooden columns. The opposite side, rear, evidently had a two-story wooden veranda running the length of the house.

The building currently contains private residences on the second floor, gift shops, a real estate office and a small plant nursery centered on the patio. The building is in good condition and possess considerable atmosphere.

The building was recorded in the National Survey of Historic Sites and Buildings in 1960 and is designated a California Historic Landmark, 501.

Photographs enclosed.

12) **Ruggles Building**: 437 First Street West, private ownership.

The wood frame structure is of Italianate Victorian design. The building perhaps dating from the 1870's is in good condition and is used as a Boutique and Music Store.

Photograph enclosed.
13) Sonoma Antique Shop: 447 First Street West. Privately owned.

The wood frame structure is of Classic Revival design and is in good condition. Used as an antique shop, the plain building is characteristic of the early 1850 period.

Photograph enclosed.

14) Batto Building and Masonic Temple: 453, 457, 461 and 465 First Street West. Both are privately owned and are in good condition.

The Batto Building is of Classic Revival style and was constructed in 1912. The structure is used for commercial offices.

The Masonic Temple: Of late Victorian design and was constructed in 1909. The brick structure has metal fire shutters.

Photograph enclosed.

15) Leese - Fitch Adobe: 487 West First Street, near the corner of Napa Street. Privately owned.

Built in 1841, by Jacob P. Leese, a brother-in-law of Vallejo, this house is a two-story adobe in the Monterey Colonial style with a wooden balcony across its front. This balcony may have been reduced in width at a later period. Originally the balcony was supported by two-story columns made of ship's masts.

From June 1849 to October 1851, the Pacific Division Headquarters of the War Department, commanded by General Persifer Smith was located in Sonoma in the structure. From July 1851 to January 1852, except for a period of duty in Oregon, Companies "A" and "E", 1st United States Dragoons commanded by Brevet Major Phillip H. Kearny, Jr., was stationed in Sonoma.

Many junior officers, later to achieve fame and advancement, were associated with the adobe during the military period; including Colonel Joseph Hooker, later known as "Fighting Joe" Hooker, Ulysses Grant, Andrew Smith, Lieutenant William T. Sherman, General Gibbs, John C. Fremont, and Kit Carson.

The building is in poor condition and houses an art gallery and tavern on the first floor and small patio, the apartments on the second floor and are not occupied. The structure is in need of rehabilitation.

Photographs enclosed.
The eight acre plaza was laid out in 1835 by General Vallejo. In 1850, the City of Sonoma incorporated.

In the early period of Sonoma, the plaza had a number of holes where the adobe soil had been obtained to build the buildings around the plaza. The plaza has had several different fences around it with stiles for access. On October 13, 1851, General Vallejo presented a petition to the City Council urging the leveling of the plaza. In 1853, a tax passed to improve the plaza with $1,500 appropriated for improvements.

In 1879, the Sonoma Valley Railroad Company was granted part of the plaza and in 1880, erected a building. In 1890, the building was removed. The plaza is now a City park.

16) **Sonoma City Hall:** Number 1, the Plaza.

The corner stone for the building, located in the center of the plaza, was laid on February 22, 1906. On December 9, 1908, the building was dedicated and is still in use.

The building is of Early Mission Revival design and is in good condition.

Photographs enclosed.

17) **Bear Flag Flagstaff and Monument:** Located in the northeast corner of Sonoma Plaza.

A photograph of a drawing (1851), recorded in the Historic American Building Survey, CAL-1436, of the northeast corner of the plaza shows the flagstaff with Casa Grande, the Mexican Barracks, and the Solano Mission behind the flagstaff.

The Bear Flag was raised on this spot on June 14, 1846, by the Bear Flag Party in their declaration of the freedom of California from Mexican rule. On July 9, 1846, the Bear Flag was hauled down and the American Flag was raised by Lieutenant Joseph W. Revere, U.S.N.

In 1913, the California State Legislature authorized $500,00 for a monument to commemorate the raising of the Bear Flag.

The bronze statue commemorates the raising in 1846 of the flag which is now the California State Flag. The bronze plaque on the monument reads, "erected by the Native Sons of the Golden West and the State of California," and commemorated are the events of June 14, 1846 and July 9, 1846.

The monument consists of a sculptured figure of a Bear Flag Soldier with flag. The huge rock which forms the mass of the monument, originally stood at the northern end of First Street West and was moved to the site. The monument is California Historic Landmark, number 7.

Photograph enclosed
SOUTH SIDE OF PLAZA

18) Vasquez House (Salt Box): 541 First Street, West, private residence.

In 1851, Charles Lubeck, a Swedish sea captain imported 40 pre-fab wooden houses to California, six of which were erected in Sonoma.

This house is undoubtedly one of the imported houses and has retained its original appearance. The house is typical of many of the pre-fabs imported to California in the 1848 to 1851 period. In fair to good condition, the house is owned by Mr. Robert Lynch of Sonoma.

Photograph enclosed.

Napa Street, between First Street West and Broadway, South Side:

Two modern bank buildings of Spanish-Mexican design influence flank a smaller stone structure used as a grocery store. The structures provide a visual continuity to the respective south side of the Plaza.

Photograph enclosed.

Napa Street, between Boradway and First Street, East, south side:

Several stone structures with altered front exteriors facing the plaza along with more modern structures occupying this commerical area. The buildings, cira 1890 to 1930, contribute to the visual continuity of Sonoma Plaza.

Photograph enclosed.

Broadway: east side, south of Napa Street, numbers 524, 526, 530, 536 Broadway.

Several wood frame, Italianate Victorian structures are located facing Broadway. Condition of the structures vary from excellent (restored) to fair.

Photograph enclosed.


Constructed in 1847, by William W. Scott, a member of the Bear Flag Party. There was a suit between Scott and Judge H. A. Green as to the ownership of the property. Scott won the suit, however, Green is described as the owner in 1847.

John H. Nash, who boarded with the Green's, was the first American Alcalde of the pueblo. In July 1847, Lieutenant William Tecumseh Sherman, later General Sherman, acting on the orders of the Military Governor of California, Colonel Mason, took prisoner Alcalde Nash. Nash had refused to relinquish his post as Alcalde to Liburn W. Boggs, appointed in 1847. Nash was taken to Monterey, reprimanded and released from custody by the Military Governor.
Nash returned to Sonoma. Attracted to the gold mines, he died at Mormon Bar in 1848.

In 1851, Judge Green died and the property was sold to the Patton family. Their daughter, Nancy Bones, came to California in 1847 with the Donnor Party. Nancy Bones had lost her husband in the tragedy and later married Lewis Adler, a Sonoma merchant. A descendant of this marriage, Zolita Bates, restored the house in 1931.

The original structure consisted of four rooms; two upstairs and two downstairs and a lean-to of three small rooms at the rear. The foundation walls are of large cobble stones and the adobe walls are some three feet in thickness. The partitions are of adobe, some two feet in thickness. Each room has an outside door. The timbers and beams are hand hewn redwood. The rectangular shaped adobe follows the traditional Spanish-Mexican plan, but includes some American features. These consist of an interior fireplace, shingled room, and a one-story covered porch across the front. The house is in good condition.

The adobe was identified in the National Survey of Historic Sites and Buildings in 1960 and is California Historical Landmark, number 667.

Photograph enclosed.

20) **Julius Poppe House, (Mode residence):** 564 First Street, East, privately owned.

In 1847, Nicholas Carriger, from Kentucky, constructed Sonoma's first redwood house and Sonoma's first well on this site. The redwood structure was in the 1850's incorporated into the present structure of gothic revival style. The Julius Poppe family came to Sonoma from Germany in the 1850's.

The present structure has been restored and is an excellent example of California Carpenters Gothic.

Photograph enclosed.

21) **Baptist Church, (Ames Chapel),** First Street East, east side, approximately 100 feet south of Napa Street.

Constructed in the early 1850's and originally known as the Ames Chapel, it was located on Napa Street, between 5th and 6th Streets. Ames Chapel is listed as the first Protestant church built north of San Francisco.

In 1868, the church was moved to its present site and the Christopher Wren style steeple added. In 1950, the structure was sold to the Baptist church.

Photograph enclosed.
Napa Street, south side, east from First Street East:

Several stone structures; 110 to 115 Napa Street, constructed in 1908 and 125 to 129 Napa Street, constructed in 1904, face north onto Napa Street. These buildings are structurally intact and are used for commercial purposes.

Located at 139 Napa Street is a wood frame late Victorian style house in use as a private residence. The highly ornate house is in fair to good condition.

Photographs enclosed.

22) Clewe Residence: 531 Second Street East.

Constructed in 1880 - 1881, the Italianate style house was the home of Sonoma merchant Johann Frederick Clewe. Mr. Clewe died in 1902 and Mrs. Clewe in 1917. Owned by Colonel Walter Gerdau, the house is in outstanding condition.

Photograph enclosed.

23) Duhring Residence (Denny): 532 Second Street East

Constructed by 1860 by Frederick Duhring, the structure was originally a modest two-story frame building. Later, a Duhring daughter, Agens, married Judge Thomas Denny and lived in the house; who probably in the early 1920's added to the house and modified it to colonial-revival style. In 1960, on Judge Denny's death, the house was sold to Albert Domerieu, the present owners.

Photograph enclosed.
EAST SIDE OF SONOMA PLAZA

24) Italinate Commercial Building, Napa Street north side, 70 feet east of First Street East. Privately owned.

The unoccupied wooden commercial building is typical of 1870's style and in poor condition. The unaltered building could be restored. Photograph enclosed.

25) Mission Hardware, 498 First Street East, corner of Napa Street, privately owned.

Constructed in 1892, the brick Victorian store is of mixed Classic Revival style. The building is in fair to good condition and is used as a hardware store. Building identified as 24 above is located on the same property. Photograph enclosed.

First Street East, between Napa and Spain Streets:

Several store buildings, circa 1900 - 1910, are located in this block facing the Plaza along with more modern structures. The buildings provide visual continuity to the east side of Sonoma Plaza.

Photographs enclosed.
**EAST SPAIN STREET**

26) **Blue Wing Inn:** Located at 133-135 East Spain Street, the building is owned by the State of California.

Assuming its present form in 1849, the Blue Wing Inn is an excellent example of the application of the Monterey Colonial style to commercial structures. The building was erected by Antonio Ortega as a typical one-story adobe, measuring 65 by 35 feet, in 1835 – 36. In 1849, James C. Cooper and Thomas Spriggs purchased the building and added 30 feet to the length of the building, the adobe second story, and also the narrow two-story wooden verandas on the front and rear. In October of that year, they opened the enlarged structure as the Sonoma Inn. About 1851, it was renamed the Blue Wing Inn and was utilized as a hotel until about 1856, when it became a residence and saloon. The house was restored in 1948 and is now used as a gift shop and apartments. Photographs enclosed.

27) **Sonoma Mission (Mission San Francisco Solano de Sonoma):** Located at 114 East Spain Street at East First Street, owned by the State of California, and administered by the Department of Parks and Recreation.

The Mission was founded on July 4, 1823 by Frair Jose Altimira and on August 25, 1823, actual work began on temporary buildings.

This mission is the last of the 21 California missions and the only one to be founded during the Mexican period. A crude wood structure, 105 ft long, 34 ft. wide, was dedicated April 4, 1824. In 1824, a granary, eight houses, all of wood, existed. Near the end of 1824, three adobe buildings were ready for roofing when heavy rains melted them into mud. It was secularized in 1834 and its buildings were in poor condition. The adobe mission church was destroyed.

The present parish church is a small one-and-a-half story adobe structure with a tile roof and is 16 ft. wide and 36 ft. long. The facade has a rectangular door with a single square-headed window above. The front wall is built of adobe, faced with burnt brick, and is about six feet thick. The lateral walls, which are pierced by three rectangular windows on each side, are of plain adobe. A vestibule about 15 feet square proceeds the nave proper, and from the entry steps lead to a choir loft over the door. A one-story tile-roofed adobe convento or residence for the priest, which is nearly 120 feet long, adjoins the chapel on the east side to give the two buildings an L-shaped ground plan.

In 1881, these buildings were sold and utilized as a hay barn, winery, and blacksmith shop. The property was donated to the State of California in 1903 and restored by the State in 1911-13. The buildings are open to visitors. The Historic American Buildings Survey recorded the building in 1934, CAL-1138. The National Survey of Historic Sites and Buildings recorded the site in 1958 under the Themes: Spanish Exploration and Settlement, War with Mexico, Architecture (colonial). The mission is also recognized as California Historic Landmark, number 3.
Spain Street, between First Street East and Second Street East:

Historical records and drawings indicate that in the area both on the north and south side of the street (east of the mission and also east of the Blue Wing Inn), several structures were located in the area during the Mexican period.

The inclusion of this area, between the existing historic structures on the west and east is essential to protect the historic setting of the mission and Blue Wing Inn and also to protect sites which may provide information and artifacts through historic archeology.


The house was built by John C. Ray, an American Settler. In 1848 the first section of wood was erected and in November 1851, the original section was incorporated with the more recent adobe half of the residence at a cost of $4,000.

The two-story structure has a hipped roof and a boral veranda around all four sides. The front section of the adobe has 22 inch thick walls and the rear section of the structure is of redwood.

The adobe section, added in 1851, was evidently added for rental purposes and the building was called Ray's Hotel. The dirt for the adobe came from across the street.

In 1851, Lewis Adler purchased the structure and it continued under the name Ray's Hotel. On Adler's death, the property went to his wife and on her death, it went to Amelia Adler Bates, who sold it in 1902.

The structure is well preserved and apparently little altered. It is now used as a private residence.

In 1851, the house was used as the Officers' Mess for Colonel Stevenson's detachment; the New York Volunteers, the 160th Regiment.

On May 6, 1851, Masonic Temple Lodge number14, received its charter. A Masonic meeting hall was established in the upstairs of the Ray House. Colonel Stevenson was the first Grand Master of the Grand Lodge in California.

Members of Lodge 14, meeting in the structure, included Stevenson, Johnston, Hooker, Sheridan, Grant, Brackett and Sherman; most junior officers at the time and later to gain fame in the Civil War.

Later, Heinrick Schleimann, often called the Father of Archeology, lived in the house while courting Adler's sister. Schleimann is known for his discovery of ancient Troy.

The Historic American Building Survey recorded the house in 1934, CAL 1439. Photographs enclosed.
29) **Dr. Taylor House**: 245 East Spain Street, Lot 37 Sonoma, circa 1852-1857, a private residence.

This structure greatly resembles the enclosed adobes of 1847-1851 period. However, it has always been of frame construction.

The house, of Monterey Colonial Style, has a long front porch and has wide horizontal redwood siding with butt joints on the front of the house which is original. Redwood stumps were utilized as a foundation for the front porch which were replaced in recent years. The house has been restored with a garage and a rear wing added about 20 years ago.

The property was part of the original grant to Don Mariano G. Vallejo. The property has also been owned by Lilburn W. Boggs, the American Alcalde of the District of Sonoma, Territory of California, who sold the property to John G. Ray on January 11, 1848. Exactly when the house was constructed is not certain.

The earliest occupant was named Cook (or possibly Cooke) who sold the house in 1861 to a wagon maker named Hope.

A Martin E. Cooke, came to Sonoma in 1852 as General Vallejo's attorney. In 1856, he purchased the Blue Wing Inn and later served as State Senator.

In the 1940's a Fred Jenner owned the house and sold it to Dr. Taylor in the 1950's, who restored the house. The house is in excellent condition.

Photograph enclosed.

30) **Castagnasso House**: 256 East Spain Street, a private residence.

In 1850, Lewis Alder moved into the new frame building which was known as Meyer and Alder's Store. The building was located on East Spain Street across from the Blue Wing Inn.

In 1856, it was purchased by another merchant and moved to the southwest corner of First Street East and Napa Street.

The building was later purchased and moved to 256 East Spain Street for use as a residence. Later, probably in the 1880's a second story was added.

Photograph enclosed.
6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS (Attachment)

6. a. Historic American Building survey

   Depository: Photoduplication Service
   Library of Congress
   Washington, D. C. 20540

b.-c. 1) National Survey of Historic Sites and Buildings, 1958 + 1967

   2) Sonoma Plaza National Historic Landmark

   Depository:

   Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation
   National Park Service
   U. S. Department of the Interior
   Washington, D. C. 20240

d.-e. 1) California Historical Landmarks

   2) Sonoma State Historic Park

   Depository:

   Department of Parks and Recreation
   1416 - 9th Street, Room 1311
   Sacramento, California 95814

JAN 15 1974
Structures Discussed in Text

1. Sonoma Barracks
2. Toscano Hotel
3. Kitchen (Toscano Hotel)
4. Hotel Annex (Toscano)
5. Casa Grande (Site)
6. Casa Grande Servants Quarters
7. Swiss Hotel
8. The Country Inn
9. Jones Adobe
10. El Dorado Hotel
11. Salvador Vallejo Adobe
12. Ruggles Building
13. Sonoma Antique Shop
14. Batto Bld. and Masonic Temple
15. Leese - Fitch Adobe
16. Sonoma City Hall
17. Bear Flat Flatstaff & Monument
18. Vasquez House
19. Nash - Patton Adobe
20. Jules Poppe House
21. Baptist Church
22. Clewe Residence
23. Frederick Duhring Residence
24. Italinante Commercial Building
25. Mission Hardware
26. Blue Wing Inn
27. Sonoma Mission
28. Ray - Adler Adobe
29. Dr. Taylor House
30. Castagnasso House